
 
AGENDA 

 
DES MOINES CITY COUNCIL 

REGULAR MEETING 
City Council Chambers 

21630 11th Avenue S, Des Moines, Washington 
 

August 18, 2016 – 7:00 p.m. 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
CORRESPONDENCE 
 
COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
BOARD AND COMMITTEE REPORTS/COUNCILMEMBER COMMENTS 
 
PRESIDING OFFICER’S REPORT 
  
ADMINISTRATION REPORT 
Page 1  Item 1:  MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORT 
 
  Item 2:  TRANSITION PLAN 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
Page 15 Item 1:  APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
    Motion is to approve the minutes from the July 28, 2016 regular City Council 

meeting and the minutes from the August 8, 2016 City Council Executive 
Session.    

 
Page 19 Item 2:  APPROVAL OF VOUCHERS 
    Motion is to approve for payment vouchers and payroll transfers through August 

10, 2016 included in the attached list and further described as follows: 
    Total A/P Checks/Vouchers  #147655-147781  $   695,713.45 
    Electronic Wire Transfers  #746-748   $   131,043.36 
    Electronic Wire Transfers  #749-749   $              void 
    Electronic Wire Transfers  #750-751   $     28,247.57 
    Payroll Checks   #18836-18840   $       4,825.51 
    Payroll Direct Deposit   #310001-310175  $   300,506.96   
    Total Certified Wire Transfers, Voids, A/P and Payroll Vouchers:   $1,160,336.85 
 
Page 21 Item 3:  DAY OF CONCERN FOR THE HUNGRY PROCLAMATION  
    Motion is to approve the Proclamation recognizing September 17, 2016 as Day 

of Concern for the Hungry.  
 
 
 



 
Page 25 Item 4:  ACCEPTANCE OF DONATION OF REAL PROPERTY FROM SCHROEDER 

TRUST AND SUZANNE SCHROEDER  
    Motion is to accept the donation of real property parcel No. 286830-0135 to the 

City at no cost, from Suzanne Schroeder and the Schroeder Trust, and authorize 
the City Manager to sign all documents necessary to effectuate the transfer, 
substantially in the form as submitted. 

 
Page 55 Item 5:  DRAFT RESOLUTION NO 16-121 SETTING PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER 

DRAFT ORDINANCE 16-121 AMENDING CHAPTER 18.10 DMMC TO 
REZONE CERTAIN PORT OF SEATTLE AND WASHINGTON STATE 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION PROPERTIES FROM RESIDENTIAL 
TO BUSINESS PARK AND HIGHER DENSITY RESIDENTIAL USES 

    Motion is to adopt Draft Resolution No. 16-121 setting a public hearing on 
October 13, 2016, or as soon thereafter as the matter may be heard, to consider 
Draft Ordinance No. 16-121 amending Chapter 18.10 DMMC to rezone certain 
Port of Seattle and Washington State Department of Transportation properties 
from Residential to Business Park and higher density residential uses.   

 
PUBLIC HEARING 
Page 77 Item 1:  DRAFT ORDINANCE NO. 16-102; AMENDMENTS TO THE CITY’S 

COMPREHENSIVE TRANSPORTATION PLAN 
    Staff Presentation:  Transportation & Engineering Services Manager 

    Brandon Carver 
 
Page 123 Item 2:  DRAFT ORDINANCE NO. 16-103; TRANSPORTATION IMPACT FEE RATE 

STUDY UPDATE 
    Staff Presentation:   Transportation & Engineering Services Manager 

    Brandon Carver 
     
NEXT MEETING DATE 
  September 8, 2016 City Council Regular Meeting   
 
ADJOURNMENT 



AGENDA ITEM 

BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
City of Des Moines, W A 

SUBJECT: Monthly Financial Report 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. City Council Monthly Financial Report 

Purpose and Recommendation 

FOR AGENDA OF: eptember 22, 20 L6 

DEPT. OF ORIGIN: Finance 

DATE SUBMITTED: August 13 .2016 

CLEARANCES: 
[] Legal N/ A \':>n...., _ 
[X] Finance ---'~,___r_ v-_""" 
[ ] Marina N/A 
[ ] Economic Development N/ A 
[ ] Parks, Recreation & Senior Services N/ A 
[ ] Planning, Building & Public Works N/A 
[ ] Police N/A 
[ ] Courts N/A 

APPROVED BY C~ANAGER 
FOR SUBMITTAL~./ 

The purpose of this agenda item is to provide an update on the city wide financial condition year to date 
through July 31, 2016. 

Background 
City Council has asked the Finance Department to provide a monthly update on the financial condition of 
the city. Attachment 1 provides the requested information. Please note the general fund revenues have 
been updated to EXCLUDE the One-Time Revenues and is consistent across all General Fund Revenue 
reporting. 

Financial Impact 
None. 

Recommendation or Conclusion 
None. 

1

1

bwilkins
Typewritten Text
Administration Report Item #1



2

2



3

3



4

4



5

5



6

6



7

7



8

8



9

9



10

10



11

11



12

12



13

13



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK 

14

14



MINUTES 

DES MOINES CITY COUNCIL 
Regular Meeting 

City Council Chambers 
21630 111h Avenue South, Des Moines 

July 28, 2016- 7:00p.m. 

CALL TO ORDER 
Mayor Pina called the meeting to order 7:02 p.m. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
The flag salute was led by Mayor Pina. 

ROLL CALL 
Council present: 

Staff present: 

Mayor Matt Pina; Mayor Pro Tern Vic Pennington; Councilmembers Melissa 
Musser, Jeremy Nutting, Luisa Bangs, Robert K. Back and Dave Kaplan. 

Interim City Attorney Tim George; Commander Bob Bohl; Interim Assistant City 
Attorney Matt Hutchins; Human Resources Manager Maureen Murphy; Planning, 
Building and Public Works Director Dan Brewer; Assistant Harbormaster Scott 
Wilkins; Police Department Office Manager Terryann Dell; Finance Director 
Dunyele Mason; Parks, Recreation & Senior Services Director Patrice Thorell; 
City Clerk Bonnie Wilkins. 

CORRESPONDENCE 
• There were no correspondences. 

COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
• Laurie McEachern, 601 S 2271h #408, Marina paid parking. 
• Bill Linscott, 22335 61h Avenue S, Waterland and meetings in the Marina regarding paid 

parking. 
• Jackie Benster, 601 S 2271h St #208, Marina parking return on investment study. 

BOARD AND COMMITTEE REPORTS/COUNCILMEMBER COMMENTS 
Mayor ProTem Pennington 

• City Manager interviews. 
• Waterland. 

Councilmember Kaplan 
• Thanked Destination Des Moines and Volunteers for a successful Waterland. 
• SCATBd Meeting: 

o State Routes 405 and 509. 
o Financial report: 

• Dues are $100 per year. 
o Transportation Technology Conference. 

• Kickoff for new Chinese airline Shenzhen Airlines. 

15

15

bwilkins
Typewritten Text
Consent Agenda Item #1

bwilkins
Typewritten Text



16

16



17

17



18

18



CITY OF DES MOINES 
Voucher Certification Approval 

1 ·8-Aug-~ 6 
Auditing Officer Certification 

Vouchers and Payroll transfers audited and certified by the auditing officer as required by 
RCW 42.24.080, and those expense reimbursement claims certified as required by 
RCW 42.24.090, have been recorded on a listing, which has been made available to the 
City Council. 

As of Aug 18, 2016 the Des Moines City Council, by unanimous vote, does approve 
for payment those vouchers and payroll transfers through Aug 10, 2016 included in the attached list and further 
described as follows: 

The vouchers below have been reviewed and certified by individual departments and the 

City or, es Moines Auditing Officer: 

l I ~ b./11~t~· Dunyei~ Mason, lnance Director 

#From #To 
C.lalms Youc!lers: 
Total AlP ChecksNouchers 147655 ('-! 1477811"\ 
Electronic Wire Transfers 746 ........ 748 h 
Electronic Wire Transfers 749- 749 v 
Electronic Wire Transfers 750 v- 751 v 
Total claims paid ~. 

Payroll Vouchers 
Payroll Checks 18836 - 18840 
Direct Deposit 310001 ---- 310175 
Payroll Checks -
Direct Deposit -
Total Paychecks/Direct O&poslts pal d 

Total checks and wires for AlP & Payroll 

Amounts 

695,713.45 
131,043.36 

void 
28,247.57 

' 855,004.38 

..... 
4,825.51 

300,506.96 

305,332.47 
1 '160,336.85 

19

19

bwilkins
Typewritten Text
Consent Agenda Item #2



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK 

20

20



AGENDA ITEM 

BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
City of Des Moines, W A 

SUBJECT: Day of Concern for the Hungry 
Proclamation 

AGENDA OF: August 18, 2016 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Proclamation 

Purpose and Recommendation: 

DEPT. OF ORIGIN: Administration 

DATE SUBMITTED: August 10,2016 

CLEARANCES: 

APPROVED BY CITY 
FOR SUBMITTAL: ----.f,L----=-<:.-~ 

The purpose of this agenda item is to recognize and support the Day of Concern for the Hungry on 
September 17, 2016. 

Suggested Motion 

MOTION: "I move to approve the Proclamation recognizing September 17, 2016 as Day of Concern 
for the Hungry." 

Background: 
This year marks the 23rd annual food drive sponsored by the Emergency Feeding Program of Seattle and 
King County. In all those years, the need for this drive has never been greater. A significant portion of 
the 300,000 individuals in King County face the daily risk of going hungry. Of that total, 86,000 are 
children. Support continues to be a crucial reason that our local food programs maintain the resources 
needed to serve. 

Grocery stores through King County will hold an annual food drive on Saturday, September 17, 2016 to 
help support the efforts of this program. 

21

21

bwilkins
Typewritten Text
Consent Agenda Item #3

bwilkins
Typewritten Text



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK 

22

22



~~~IT~:!~ 
21630 11'h AVENUES, SUITE A 

DES MOINES, WASHINGTON 98198-6398 
(206) 878-4595 T.D.D: (206) 824-6024 FAX: (206) 870-6540 

t)roclamation 

WHEREAS King County cities recognize adequate nutrition as a basic goal for each citizen, 
and 

WHEREAS no parent should have to send a child to school hungry, no baby should be 
without the comfort of the feedings needed for mental and physical growth, no elderly persons 
health should be jeopardized by lack of appropriate foods, and 

WHEREAS food banks, emergency and hot meal programs working with our cities, local 
churches, social service agencies, and hundreds of volunteers are striving day in and day out to 
stem the rising tide of hunger, but still need more help, and 

WHEREAS we believe that when the citizens who are not involved hear of the especially 
desperate needs of the hungry as winter approaches and their low incomes must stretch to cover 
increasing fuel, electricity and rental costs, leaving even less money for monthly food purchase, 
an outpouring of community assistance will follow, and 

WHEREAS the Emergency Feeding Program of Seattle and King County coordinates an 
annual food drive to help support the efforts of their program and the areas food banks in 
fighting hunger which will be held at grocery stores throughout King County on Saturday, 
September 1 7, 20 16, 

NOW THEREFORE THE DES MOINES CITY COUNCIL HEREBY RECOGNIZES 
September 1 7, 2016 as 

DAY OF CONCERN FOR THE HUNGRY 

SIGNED this 18th day of August, 2016 

Matt Pina, Mayor 

23

23

bwilkins
Typewritten Text
Attachment #1

bwilkins
Typewritten Text

bwilkins
Typewritten Text



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK 

24

24



AGENDA ITEM 

BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
City of Des Moines, W A 

SUBJECT: Acceptance of Donation of Real 
Property from Schroeder Trust and Suzanne 
Schroeder 

ATTACHMENT: 

1) Property Details- Parcel No. 286830-0135 
2) Title Report 
3) Property Transfer Documents 

Purpose and Recommendation 

FOR AGENDA OF: August 18,2016 

DEPT. OF ORIGIN: Parks, Recreation and Senior 
Services 

DATE SUBMITTED: August 10, 2016 

CLEARAN~;.,­
[X] Legaf..!,:) 
[ ] Finance NA 

[ ] Marina NA ~ 
[X] Parks, Recreation & Senior ervice 
[X] Planning, Building & Public Works~ 
[ ] Police NA 
[ ] Courts NA 

APPROVED BY C~A<l!JR 
FOR SUBMITI AL: / /J_ If 

The purpose of this agenda item is to request City Council approval of the donation of real property to 
the City from Suzanne Schroeder and the 0. Stewart Schroeder Revocable Living Trust. 

Motion: "I move to accept the donation of real property parcel No. 286830-0135 to the City at no cost, 
from Suzanne Schroeder and the Schroeder Trust, and authorize the City Manager to sign all documents 
necessary to effectuate the transfer, substantially in the form as submitted." 

Background 

The Schroeder property is located adjacent to the Des Moines Creek Park and provides an open space 
buffer between the North Hill neighborhood and the Des Moines Creek Trail. Attachment A shows the 
property details. The subject property, valued at $17,000 was offered for sale on the real estate market 
for over two years and did not sell because the lot is considered unbuildable. The Schroeder's have 
offered to transfer the property to the City at no cost in its present condition for park and open space 
purposes. 

25

25

bwilkins
Typewritten Text
Consent Agenda Item #4



26

26



PARCEL DATA 

Parcel 

Name 

Site Address 

Residential Area 

Property Name 

Legal Description 

~r 286830-0135 

lrSCHROEDER 0 
J STEWART 

il 
088-002 (SW Appraisal 
District) 

Jurisdiction 

Levy Code 

:1 DES MOINES 

1/ 1126 

Property Type _j~ 
Plat Block I Building [3 Number 

Plat Lot I Unit Number 

Quarter-Section­
Township-Range 

1[ 

il7 
_j 

NE-8 -22-4 

GRANVILLE ESTATES ADD LESS BEG SECOR; TH N ALG E LN 187.72 FT; TH S 79-54-24 W 
50 FT; TH S 23-48-30 W 187.64 FT TO S LN SO LOT TH E 125 FT ALG SO S LN TO BEG 
Plat Block: 3 
Plat Lot: 7 

LAND DATA 

n 
Highest & Best Use As If 1 SINGLE FAMILy 
Vacant 

I Highest & Best Use As 
Improved 

Present Use 

Land SqFt 

Acres 

(unknown) 

! Vacant(Single-
1 family) 

57,063 

__ .;.....;__-=-=-=== 
J 1.31 

Views 

Rainier J = 

Territorial 

j 

Percentage Unusable 'o 
I 

Unbuildable I YES 

Restrictive Size Shape I NO 
I 

Zoning I RS-7200 

Water l WATER DISTRICT 
I 

Sewer/Septic ! PUBLIC 

Road Access I PUBLIC 

Parking l 
Street Surface PAVED 
---

Waterfront 

II 
0 

27

27

bwilkins
Typewritten Text
Attachment #1

bwilkins
Typewritten Text



28

28



29

29



30

30



ALTA Commitment (6/17/06) 

ALTA Commitment Form 

COMMITMENT FOR TITLE INSURANCE 
Issued by 

STEWART TITLE GUARANTY COMPANY 

STEWART TITLE GUARANTY COMPANY, a Texas Corporation ("Company"), for a valuable consideration, commits to issue 
its policy or policies of title insurance, as identified in Schedule A, in favor of the Proposed Insured named in Schedule A, as 
owner or mortgagee of the estate or interest in the land described or referred to in Schedule A, upon payment of the premiums 
and charges and compliance with the Requirements; all subject to the provisions of Schedules A and B and to the Conditions 
of this Commitment. 

This Commitment shall be effective only when the identity of the Proposed Insured and the amount of the policy or policies 
committed for have been inserted in Schedule A by the Company. 

All liability and obligation under this Commitment shall cease and terminate six months after the Effective Date or when the 
policy or policies committed for shall issue, whichever first occurs, provided that the failure to issue the policy or policies is not 
the fault of the Company. 

The Company will provide a sample of the policy form upon request. 

This Commitment shall not be valid or binding until countersigned by a validating officer or authorized signatory. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Stewart Title Guaranty Company has caused its corporate name and seal to be affixed by its duly 
authorized officers on the date shown in Schedule A. 

Countersigned by: 

Stewart Title Company 
18000 International Blvd, Suite 500 
SeaTac, WA 98188 
(206) 770-8700 

stewart 
title guaranty company 

Copyright 2006-2009 American Land Title Association. All rights reserved. 
The use of this Form is restricted to ALTA licensees and ALTA members in good standing as of the date of use. 
All other uses are prohibited. Reprinted under license from the American Land Title Association. 

File No. 01148-50103 
004-UN ALTA Commitment (6/17/06) 

,~Z~ 
Matt Morris 

President and CEO 

~ 

AMUIJ AN 
IAI<n IIHI 

Secretary 

31

31

bwilkins
Typewritten Text
Attachment #2



32

32



33

33



34

34



35

35



36

36



37

37



38

38



39

39



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK 

40

40



2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF WASHINGTON 
FOR THE COUNTY OF PIERCE 

In the Matter of the Estate of: 

0. STEWART SCHROEDER, 

Deceased. 

NO. 16-4-00334-9 

BINDING AGREEMENT REGARDING 
THE ESTATE OF 0. STEWART 
SCHROEDER 

RCW 11.96A.220 

The parties hereto have agreed to enter into a binding agreement pursuant to 

RCW 11.96A.220 with regard to the Estate of 0. STEWART. 

1. PARTIES TO AGREEMENT. 

The parties to this matter are: STEPHANIE SCHROEDER MARTIN, a 

18 daughter of 0. STEWART SCHROEDER, personal representative of the estate of 0. 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

Stewart Schroder, and successor trustee of the 0. STEWART SCHROEDER 

Revocable Living Trust and beneficiary to the estate of 0. STEWART SCHROEDER; 

and SCOTT STEWART SCHROEDER, a son and beneficiary of 0. STEWART 

SCHROEDER. 

2. RECITALS. 

A. 0. STEWART SCHROEDER executed a will on May 31, 1995. In 

said Will, he bequeathed his entire estate to the 0. Stewart 

Schroeder Revocable Living Trust dated May 31, 1995 (hereinafter 

referred to as "the Trust"). STEPHANIE SCHROEDER MARTIN was 

nominated at personal representative of the estate. 

BINDING AGREEMENT REGARDING THE LUCE & ASSOCIATES, P.S. 
ESTATE OF 0. STEWART SCHROEDER 
Page 1 of 6 

4505 Pacific Hwy E, Ste A I Tacoma, WA 98424-2638 

Phone: 253 922 87241 Fax: 253 922 2802 

Toll free : 8oo 488 8724 
Website: www.LucelawFirm.com 

41

41

bwilkins
Typewritten Text
Attachment #3

bwilkins
Typewritten Text

bwilkins
Typewritten Text



42

42



43

43



44

44



45

45



46

46



47

47



48

48



49

49



50

50



51

51



52

52



53

53



54

54



AGENDA ITEM 

BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
City of Des Moines, W A 

SUBJECT: Draft Resolution No. 16-121 setting 
Public Hearing to consider Draft Ordinance 16-121 
amending Chapter 18.10 DMMC to rezone certain 
Port of Seattle and Washington State Department 
of Transportation properties from Residential to 
Business Park and higher density residential uses 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Draft Resolution No. 16-121 Setting a 

Public Hearing Date for Draft Ordinance 
No. 16-121. 

2. Draft Ordinance No. 16-121 Amending 
Chapter 18.10 DMMC. 

3. Current R-SE Zoning 
4. Proposed Rezone with WSDOT Remnant 

Property Rezoned from RS-E to City Staff­
Proposed RS 8,400. 

5. Proposed Rezone with WSDOT Remnant 
Property Rezoned from RS-E to WSDOT­
Proposed RM 2,400 Residential: Multi­
family. 

6. Property Owner Letters 

Purpo e and Recommendation 

FOR AGENDA OF: August 18,2016 

DEPT. OF ORIGIN: Planning, Building and 
Public Works 

DATE SUBMITTED: August 10,2016 

CLEARANCES: 
[X] Leg~ 
[ ] Finance N/ A 
[ ] Marina N/ A 
[ ] Parks, Recreation & Senior Services N/ A 
[X] Planning, Building & Public Works 1) :5fl 
[ ] Police N/ A 
[ ] Courts N/A 
[ ] Economic Development __ 

The purpose of this Agenda Item is for the City Council to consider Draft Resolution No. 16-121 
(Attachment 1) which will set a public hearing date for the consideration of Draft Ordinance No. 16-121 
(Attachment 2) that would amend the Des Moines Municipal Code Chapter 18.10 and the City Zoning 
Map to rezone certain Port of Seattle and Washington State Department of Transportation properties 
from Residential to Business Park and possibly higher density residential uses. The following motion 
will appear on the Consent Calendar: 

Suggested Motion 

Motion 1: "I move to adopt Draft Resolution No. 16-121 setting a public hearing on October 13, 2016, 
or as soon thereafter as the matter may be heard, to consider Draft Ordinance No. 16-121 amending 
Chapter 18.10 DMMC to rezone certain Port of Seattle and Washington State Department of 
Transportation properties from Residential to Business Park and higher density residential uses." 

55

55

bwilkins
Typewritten Text
Consent Agenda Item #5



56

56



57

57



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK 

58

58



CITY ATTORNEY'S FIRST DRAFT 8/4/2016 

DRAFT RESOLUTION NO. 16-121 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DES MOINES, 
WASHINGTON, setting a public hearing to consider Draft Ordinance 
No. 16-121 relating to the Zoning Code and City land use and 
development regulations, and amending chapter 18.10 DMMC to change 
zoning of certain residential properties to Business Park and 
higher density residential uses. 

WHEREAS, the City Council directed City staff to prepare 
an ordinance for its consideration which changes zoning of 
certain Port of Seattle and Washington State Department of 
Transportation properties from Residential to Business Park, and 

WHEREAS, at the June 9, 2016 City Council Finance and 
Economic Development Committee meeting, staff presented a proposal 
to rezone Port of Seattle and Washington State Department of 
Transportation properties west of Des Moines Creek Business Park 
and both north and south of S. 216th Street to more properly conform 
to the City's Comprehensive Preferred Land Use Map and to 
facilitate further economic development, and 

WHEREAS, the Planning, Building and Public Works Director, 
acting as the SEPA responsible official, reviewed this proposed 
non-project action and determined that the proposed zoning changes 
were adequately evaluated for environmental impact as part of the 
City of Des Moines 2015 Comprehensive Plan Update (LUA2015-
0023)when the City updated its preferred land use designations for 
these properties in order to further the economic vision for the 
City by promoting development in a manner that strengthens 
community sustainabili ty, pedestrian accessibility, livability, 
business vitality, and employment and housing capacity, and 

WHEREAS, the rezone is categorically exempt from threshold 
determination and EIS requirements in accordance with WAC 197-11-
8 0 0 ( 6) (c) and DMMC 16 . 0 5 . 3 50, and 

WHEREAS, the zoning map amendments proposed in the Draft 
Ordinance have been provided to the Department of Commerce as 
required by RCW 36.70A.106, and 

WHEREAS, notice of the public hearing will be issued in 
accordance with the DMMC, and 

59

59

bwilkins
Typewritten Text
Attachment #1



60

60



CITY ATTORNEY'S FIRST DRAFT 08/04/2016 

DRAFT ORDINANCE NO. 16-121 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF DES MOINES, WASHINGTON relating 
to the Zoning Code and City land use and development regulations, 
and amending chapter 18.10 
residential properties to 
residential uses. 

DMMC to 
business 

change zoning of 
par~, and higher 

certain 
density 

WHEREAS, the City Council directed City staff to prepare an 
ordinance for its consideration which changes zoning of certain 
Port of Seattle and Washington State Department of Transportation 
properties from Residential to Business Park, and 

WHEREAS, at the June 9, 2016 ' City Council Finance and 
Economic Development Committee meeting, staff presented a proposal 
to rezone Port of Seattle and Washington State Department of 
Transportation properties west of Des Moines Creek Business Park 
and both north and south of S. 216th Street to more properly conform 
to the City's Comprehensive Preferred Land Use Map and to 
facilitate further economic development, and 

WH~~AS, the Planning, Building and Public Works Director, 
acting as the SEPA :responsible official, reviewed this proposed 
non-piqject action and determined that the proposed zoning changes 
were a'dequately evaluated for environmental impact as part of the 
City 'o:f' Des Moines 2015 Comprehensive Plan Update (LUA2015-
0023)when the City updated its preferred land use designations for 
these properties in orqer to further the economic vision for the 
City by piomoting development in a manner that strengthens 
community sustai:nabili tty, pedestrian accessibility, livability, 
business vitality, ~nd employment and housing capacity, and 

WHEREAS, the rezone is categorically exempt from threshold 
determination and EIS requirements in accordance with WAC 197-11-
8 0 0 ( 6) (c) and DMMC 16. 0 5 . 3 50, and 

WHEREAS, the City Council set the date for the public 
hearing by Draft Resolution No. 16-121, fixing the public 
hearing for October 13, 2016 as required by DMMC 18 . 30.070, and 

8/4/2016 
Draft Ordinance No. 16-121 

61

61

bwilkins
Typewritten Text
Attachment #2

bwilkins
Typewritten Text

bwilkins
Typewritten Text



62

62



63

63



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK 

64

64



65

65

bwilkins
Typewritten Text
Attachment #3

bwilkins
Typewritten Text

bwilkins
Typewritten Text



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK 

66

66



67

67

bwilkins
Typewritten Text
Attachment #4



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK 

68

68



0 125 250 500 750 1,000 

Scale In Feet 

• 
Current Zoning 

* Fife: CurrentZoningMap pdf 
Map Generated: Mar 11, 2015 
©2015 City of Des Moines GIS 

2 15nl p~ 

:r: 

:r: ,_ 

UJS 220 rH ST 

-- Des Moines Creek Trail 

R-SE Residential: Suburban Eslates 

RS-9600 Residential: Single Family 9600 

RS-8400 Residential: Single Family 8400 

RS-7200 Residential: Single Family 7200 

RA-3600 Residenlial: Attached Townhouse & Duplex 

RM-2400 Residential: Multifamily 2400 

RM-900 Mullifamily 900 

- B-P Business Park 

I 
J 

S 209~1-1 PL 

S ? 1 9TH ST 

69

69

bwilkins
Typewritten Text
Attachment #5



70

70



71

71



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK 

72

72



---· 
Dean R Lyle 

9111156th PI NE 

Redmond WA 98052 

July 22, 2016 

Daniel J. Brewer 

Planning, Building & Public Works Director 

City of Des Moines 

21650 11th Avenue South 

Des Moines, WA 98198-6317 

RE: Your June 28, 2016 Letter about Property Re-zone 

Dear Mr Brewer: 

Thank you for your letter with the information about the proposed re-zone of my property 092204-9042 on S 
216 street. I have just received your letter which was sent to the wrong address. Please update your records 
to show my correct address as shown above. 

I do not support, at this time, the re-zone of my property. Please do not include my property in the re-zone 

ordinance planned for this fall. I will inform you in the future if my situation changes. 

Thank you for your concern . 

~v;(~tl 
Dean R Lyle 

73

73

bwilkins
Typewritten Text
Attachment #6



74

74



75

75



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK 

76

76



AGENDA ITEM 

BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
City of Des Moines, W A 

SUBJECT: Draft Ordinance No. 16-102 
Amendments to the City's Comprehensive 
Transportation Plan 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Draft Ordinance No. 16-102 Amendments 

to the City's Comprehensive 
Transportation Plan 

FOR AGENDA OF: August 18,2016 

DEPT. OF ORIGIN: Planning, Building and 
Public Works 

DATE SUBMITTED: August 10, 2016 

CLEARAN~ 
[X] Legal'\}_ '-.-:) 
[ ] Finance N/A 
[ ] Marina N/A 
[ ] Parks, Recreation & Senior Services N/ A 
[X] Planning, Building & Public Works 1) jf> 
[ ] Police N/A 
[ ] Courts N/A 
[ ] Economic Development __ 

APPROVED BY CIT ..............,,..._ ER 
FOR SUBMITTAL: ~+--+---"----I!V\...t-

Purpose and Recommendation 
The purpose of this Agenda Item is for the City Council to consider Draft Ordinance No. 16-102 
(Attachment 1) for enactment of amendments to the City's current Comprehensive Transportation Plan. 

Suggested Motions 

Motion 1: "I move to suspend rule 26(a) in order to enact Draft Ordinance 16-102 on First Reading". 

Motion 2: "I move to enact Draft Ordinance No. 16-102 Amending updates to the City's current 
Comprehensive Transportation Plan." 

Background 
The City's current Comprehensive Transportation Plan (CTP) was adopted in June 2009 and serves as 
the twenty-year road map for the City of Des Moines' transportation issues, setting policies, goals, and 
strategies that help guide decisions regarding the existing and envisioned transportation system. 

1 

77

77

bwilkins
Typewritten Text
Public Hearing Item #1

bwilkins
Typewritten Text



78

78



79

79



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK 

80

80



CITY ATTORNEY'S FIRST DRAFT 08/9/2016 

DRAFT ORDINANCE NO. 16-102 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF DES MOINES, WASHINGTON amending 
the Comprehensive Transportation Plan for the City of Des Moines. 

WHEREAS, the State's growth management act requires that 
agencies prepare a transportation plan that is directly tied to 
land use decisions and financial planning, and that plan must 
address growth and transportation planning for at least 10 years 
into the future, and 

WHEREAS, the City's Comprehensive Transportation Plan was 
adopted in 2009 by Ordinance 1458, for the years 2009 through 2030. 

WHEREAS, the mandates of the Growth Management Act and 
various changes in conditions and circumstances have necessitated 
the preparation and amendment of the Comprehensive Transportation 
Plan, and 

WHEREAS, in mid-2015 the City authorized Fehr & Peers to 
prepare an amendment to the City's Comprehensive Transportation 
Plan that evaluated growth assumptions made in the 2009 Update for 
improving the transportation system of the City of Des Moines to 
ensure the system will meet existing and future travel needs, and 
to provide a reference resource for the development of elements of 
the City's Comprehensive Plan, and 

WHEREAS, the Comprehensive Transportation Plan amendment 
review looked at projected household and employment growth out to 
2035, and 

Comprehensive Transportation 
recently updated Des Moines 

and prioritizing improvements to 
identifying appropriate revenue 

WHEREAS, amendments to the 
Plan are consistent with the 
Comprehensive Plan by identifying 
the transportation system and by 
sources, and 

WHEREAS, based on the information presented, the City 
Council finds it to be in the public interest to amend the 
Comprehensive Transportation Plan, and that this Ordinance is 
appropriate and necessary; now therefore, 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DES MOINES ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 

81

81

bwilkins
Typewritten Text
Attachment #1



82

82



83

83



84

84



85

85



86

86



87

87



88

88



89

89



90

90



91

91



92

92



93

93



94

94



95

95



96

96



97

97



98

98



99

99



100

100



101

101



102

102



103

103



104

104



105

105



106

106



107

107



108

108



109

109



110

110



111

111



112

112



113

113



114

114



115

115



116

116



117

117



118

118



119

119



120

120



121

121



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK 

122

122



AGENDA ITEM 

BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
City of Des Moines, W A 

SUBJECT: Draft Ordinance No. 16-103 
Transportation Impact Fee Rate Study Update 

FOR AGENDA OF: August 18, 2016 

DEPT. OF ORIGIN: Planning, Building and 
ATTACHMENTS: Public Works 

1. Draft Ordinance No. 16-103 Transportation 
Impact Fee Update DATE SUBMITTED: August 10,2016 

CLEARANC~C 
[X] Legal __ 
[ ] Finance N/A 
[ ] Marina N/A 
[ ] Parks, Recreation & Senior Services N/ A 
[X] Planning, Building & Public Works "P~ 
[ ] Police N/ A 
[ ] Courts N/ A 
[ ] Economic Development __ 

FOR SUBMITTAL: / Ai Af 
APPROVED BY C~NAGER 

.Purpose and Recommendation 
The purpose of this Agenda Item is for the City Council to consider Draft Ordinance No. 16-103 
(Attachment 1) for enactment of an update to the Transportation Impact Fee Rate Study. 

Suggested Motions 

Motion 1: "I move to suspend rule 26(a) in order to enact Draft Ordinance 16-103 on First Reading." 

Motion 2: "I move to enact Draft Ordinance No. 16-103 updating the Transportation Impact Fee Rate 
Study." 

Background 
The City's current Comprehensive Transportation Plan (CTP) was adopted in June 2009 and serves as 
the twenty-year road map for the City of Des Moines' transportation issues, setting policies, goals, and 
strategies that help guide decisions regarding the existing and envisioned transportation system. 
Periodic updates/amendments are required to ensure the growth assumptions and projections are 
reasonable and in line with actual employment and household growth in order that the transportation 

1 

123

123

bwilkins
Typewritten Text
Public Hearing Item #2



124

124



125

125



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK 

126

126



CITY ATTORNEY'S FIRST DRAFT 08/04/2016 

DRAFT ORDINANCE NO. 16-103 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF DES MOINES, WASHINGTON amending 
DMMC 12.40.060 and 12.40.100; adopting the February 2016 update of 
the Transportation Impact Fees Rate Study and amending the 
transportation impact fees on development activity. 

WHEREAS, the Des Moines City Council ("Council") finds that 
new growth and development in the City of Des Moines will create 
additional demand and need for public facilities, and 

WHEREAS, the City of Des Moines is authorized by 
chapter 82.02 RCW to require new growth and development within the 
City of Des Moines to pay a proportionate share of the cost of new 
facilities to serve such new development activity through the 
assessment of transportation impact fees, and 

WHEREAS, the transportation impact fees assessed pursuant 
to chapter 82.02 RCW must be based upon a showing that new growth 
and development creates additional demand and need for public 
facilities, that the impact fees do not exceed a proportionate 
share of the costs of such additional public facilities, and that 
the fees are spent for facilities reasonably related to the new 
growth and development, and 

WHEREAS, the City of Des Moines is authorized by chapter 
82.02 RCW to impose transportation impact fees for system 
improvement costs previously incurred by the City of Des Moines to 
the extent that new growth and development will be served by 
previously constructed improvements, and 

WHEREAS, transportation impact fees may be collected and 
spent for system improvements that are included within a capital 
facilities plan element of a comprehensive plan, and 

WHEREAS, the City of Des Moines has adopted a list of 
transportation capital facilities in the Transportation Element of 
the Comprehensive Plan which list is also adopted by reference in 
the Capital Facilities Plan Element, and 

WHEREAS, the City of Des Moines updated its Comprehensive 
Plan on November 12, 2009, and 

127

127

bwilkins
Typewritten Text
Attachment #1

bwilkins
Typewritten Text



128

128



129

129



130

130



131

131



132

132



133

133



134

134



135

135



136

136



137

137



138

138



139

139



140

140



141

141



142

142



143

143



144

144



145

145



146

146



147

147



148

148



149

149



150

150



151

151



152

152



153

153



154

154



155

155



156

156



157

157



158

158



159

159



160

160



Draft Ordinance 16‐102: 
Amendments to the City’s Comprehensive Transportation Plan

August 18, 2016
R. Brandon Carver – Engineering Services Manager



Background
Highlights:

 City’s current Comprehensive Transportation Plan was adopted in June 2009 (2010 – 2030)

 Periodic updates/amendments are required to ensure the growth assumptions and projections are reasonable

 Mid‐ 2015 staff began working with Fehr and Peers to review and update the growth projections to 2035

 Findings and recommendations brought to PS&T committee in Nov. 2015 and February 2016

 Public Hearing noticed on August 3, 2016 in the Seattle Times



Key Findings
Highlights:

 Household growth assumed at 17,192 for 2030 – revised to 16,145 by 2035

 Employment growth assumed at 11,236 for 2030 – revised to 11,360 by 2035

 In general moderate traffic growth, with some notable traffic growth on 16th Ave S and DMMD



Key Findings (cont’d)

Highlights:

 Two new street connections added: 
 South 236th Lane between Highline College and SR‐99



Key Findings (cont’d)

Highlights:

South 212th Street between 24th Ave S and SR‐99



Key Findings (cont’d)

Highlights:

 Policy amendments included the following recommendations in the next CTP Update (2021/2022):

 Consider the “special needs of all transportation users” as a policy in project design/development

 Consider adopting a facility completeness measure of level of service for pedestrians, bicycle users, and transit versus just vehicles



Suggested Motions:

Motion 1: “I move to suspend Rule 26(a) on order to enact Draft Ordinance 16‐102 on first 
reading.”

Motion 2:  “I move to enact Draft Ordinance 16‐102, Amending updates to the City’s current 
Comprehensive Transportation Plan.”



Draft Ordinance 16‐103: 
Transportation Impact Fee Rate Study Update

August 18, 2016
R. Brandon Carver – Engineering Services Manager



Background

 City’s current Comprehensive Transportation Plan was adopted in June 2009 (2010 – 2030) and updated this year to look at growth 
out to 2035

 As a part of the CTP, a list of Transportation projects that add capacity for planned growth.  In 2009 CTP the cost of these projects was 
$105M

 Spreading the portion of growth related to development within the City led to a PM peak hour base rate = $6,088 per new trip in 
2009.

 Council elected to set the base rate at $5,000 per new trip and provide a phase‐in schedule beginning with $2,500 the first year and 
gradually increasing over 4 years.  The rate is also subject to an inflation adjustment in March each year based on the CCI (Construction 
Cost Index)

 Economic slowdown resulted in the Council modifying the phase‐in schedule

 Currently the base rate is $6,060.25 being applied at 85% to equal $5,151.21

 Without Council action, the assessed fee would be 100% of the base rate in January 2017 ($6,060.25)



Discussion

 As a follow‐up to the CTP update just completed, staff began working with Fehr and Peers to update the 
corresponding Rate Study for Transportation Impact Fees

 The updated list of capacity related transportation projects now totals $83M versus the previous $105M

 Of the $83M, $48.5M is projected to be related to development within the City

 Using an updated number of projected new PM peak hour trips (7,600), the corresponding cost per new 
PM peak hour trip = $6,380



How Impact Fee is Calculated
Impact Fee Project 

Total Cost 
$83 M

Existing Deficiency
$0 M

City Impact Fee Cost 
$48.5 M

Other Funds Needed 
$34.5 M

City Growth  
$48.5 M (58%)

Outside City Growth 
$34.5 M (42%)

New PM Peak Hour Trips = 7,600

Cost/Trip End = $6,380

Growth Costs
$83 M



Discussion (cont’d)
Highlights:

 $6,380 represents the maximum allowable rate per trip to charge

 The current base impact fee rate is $5,151.21, for typical land use developments this equates to:

 Single Family House  ‐ $5,896.42
 Office (sq. ft.)  ‐ $18.36
 Shopping Center (sq. ft.) ‐ $10.58
 Industrial Park (sq. ft.) ‐ $6.50

 Staff is recommending that Council adopt the current 2016 base rate in place ($5,151) 

 Note: Pacific Ridge Mitigation Fees are not directly effected by the TIF rate study update (SEPA mitigation 
fees that fund Neighborhood Improvement Projects) 





Current TIF rates per new Single Family Home comparison
Des Moines  ‐ $5,896.42

*Auburn ‐ $4,295.41

*Kent ‐ $3,974.93

*Federal Way ‐ $3,718.23

Burien ‐ $957.00

SeaTac ‐ $3,500.00 (adopted 8/9/16, up from $1,020)

*Cities that also collect School Impact Fees (range between $3,044 to $5,384)

Not necessarily apples to apples (each City has unique funding resources for road projects)



Suggested Motions:

Motion 1: “I move to suspend Rule 26(a) on order to enact Draft Ordinance 16‐103 on first 
reading.”

Motion 2:  “I move to enact Draft Ordinance 16‐103, updating the Transportation Impact Fee Rate 
Study.”




















